
Legal and Democratic Services

LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
Thursday 27 September 2018 at 7.30 pm

Council Chamber - Epsom Town Hall

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Licensing and Planning Policy 
Committee meeting, on the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business 
set out in this agenda.

Councillor Graham Dudley (Chairman)
Councillor Michael Arthur MBE
Councillor Steve Bridger
Councillor Chris Frost
Councillor Rob Geleit

Councillor Tina Mountain
Councillor Martin Olney
Councillor David Reeve
Councillor Humphrey Reynolds

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive

For further information, please contact Sandra Dessent, tel:  01372 732121 or email: 
sdessent@epsom-ewell.gov.uk

AGENDA

1. QUESTION TIME  (Pages 3 - 4)

To take any questions from members of the Public

Please note:  Members of the Public are requested to inform the 
Democratic Servicers Officer before the meeting begins if they wish to ask 
a verbal question to the Committee. For further information please contact 
Sandra Dessent, Democratic Services Officer on 01372 732121.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members are asked to declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests in respect of any item of business to be considered at the 
meeting.

Public Document Pack



3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 8)

The Committee is asked to confirm as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting 
of the Committee held on 10 July 2018 (attached) and to authorise the 
Chairman to sign them.

4. THE REVISED NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK  (Pages 9 - 18)

The government has published the revised National Planning Policy 
Framework, and the Borough Council submitted a response to the public 
consultation on this document during May 2018. The Committee is asked to 
note the revised National Planning Policy Framework and acknowledge the 
possible implications in terms of the emerging Local Plan agree that future 
planning decisions accord with the revised National Planning Policy Framework.



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
27 September 2018

Question Time
To take any questions from members of the Public

Please note:  Members of the Public are requested to inform the 
Democratic Servicers Officer before the meeting begins if they wish to 
ask a verbal question to the Committee.  For further information please 
contact Sandra Dessent, Democratic Services Officer on 01372 732121.

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



1

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

Minutes of the Meeting of the LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE 
held on 10 July 2018

PRESENT -

Councillor Graham Dudley (Chairman);  Councillors Humphrey Reynolds (acting Vice-
Chairman), Michael Arthur MBE, Steve Bridger, Chris Frost, Rob Geleit, Tina Mountain, 
Martin Olney and David Reeve

Officers present: Damian Roberts (Chief Operating Officer), Rachel Jackson (Licensing, 
Grants and HIA Manager), Karol Jakubczyk (Planning Policy Manager) and Sandra 
Dessent (Democratic Services Officer)

15 COUNCILLOR DAVID WOOD 

The Committee observed a one minute silence to mark the passing of Councillor 
David Wood ex-Mayor who was Vice-Chairman on the Licensing and Planning 
Policy Committee and also served on the Planning Committee. 

16 APPOINTMENT OF A VICE-CHAIRMAN 

With the agreement of the Committee, Councillor Humphrey Reynolds was 
appointed as Vice-Chairman for the meeting.

17 QUESTION TIME 

No questions had been submitted or were asked by members of the public.

18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Epsom & Ewell Green Belt Study Stage 2

Councillor Tina Mountain, Other Interest: In the interests of openness and 
transparancy Councillor Mountain declared her property was situated in a road 
identified in the Green Belt Study.

19 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The Minutes of the meeting of the Licensing and Planning Policy Committee held 
on 7 June 2018 were agreed as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

It was noted that Minute 10 relating to the appointment of the licensing panel 
chairmen was to dealt with at Council on 17 July under ‘Revisions to 
Constitution’, item 5.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Meeting of the Licensing and Planning Policy Committee, 10 July 2018 2

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

20 EPSOM & EWELL GREEN BELT STUDY STAGE 2 

Following on from an initial Green Belt Study presented to the Licensing and 
Planning Policy Committee in April 2017, the Committee received the Green Belt 
Study 2 report, which presented a more detailed review of the lower scoring 
areas of Green Belt (performance assessed against the five purposes as set out 
in the NPPF), as well as those sites which had been promoted through the Local 
Plan call for sites process.

It was noted that the introduction of the study referred to two plan periods, i.e. 
2007-26 and 2015-2032.  Officers confirmed that 2007-26 was the original plan 
period included in the existing Core Strategy and 2015-2032 was the revised 
plan period for the forthcoming local plan.  

Clarification was sought on the status of brownfield sites and whether a similar 
study (to that produced in relation to the Green Belt) would be prepared focusing 
upon the potential housing opportunities present on brownfield sites.   Members 
acknowledged that the Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) 
published in July 2017 included an assessment of existing sites and further work 
was being done to identify the housing potential from sites currently in non-
residential use which could come forward for development in the future.  It was 
further noted that the Master Plan would also take into account the potential to 
develop brownfield sites.

Accordingly the Committee agreed to the publication of the Green Belt Study 
Stage 2. 

21 LOCAL PLAN PROGRAMME 

The Committee considered a revised Local Plan programme which detailed the 
process and suggested timetable to achieve the delivery of the Local Plan.

It was noted that the policies that made up the evolving local plan were a 
combination of substantive and emerging strategies some of which would be 
superseded by the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) for example 
CS7 which does not take into account the government’s standard methodology 
for calculating objectively assessed housing need.  

The Committee was informed that the personnel listed under Internal Resources 
was current staff levels, however it was recognised that when the new NPPF is 
published and officers have a clearer picture of the government’s expectations, 
the level of resources required to achieve the delivery of the Local Plan would be 
reviewed.

Having considered the revised timetable, the Committee agreed to the 
publication of the Local Plan programme on the Council’s website, with 
immediate effect.

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



Meeting of the Licensing and Planning Policy Committee, 10 July 2018 3

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

22 STATEMENT OF POLICY - LICENSING ACT 2003 

The Committee was informed that the Council was required to publish a 
Statement of Licensing policy at least every five years.  The current policy had 
been in place since 11 December 2013 and it was therefore appropriate to 
review the policy at this time.

A statutory consultation had taken place which commenced on 19 April 2018 and 
ended on 24 May 2018.  No responses were received.

The following amendments were agreed by the Committee:

Page 125, paragraph 4.5 Amber Zone add:

‘(Town Centre except the above, as 
shown in the map, namely 
remaining parts of:)

Page 125, paragraph 4.5 Red Zone, add:

Epsom Square (formally known as 
Derby Square) and Oaks Square

Page 129, paragraphs 4.6 and 4.7 Where the words Licensing 
Committee appears add:

(within the Licensing and 
Planning Policy Committee)

Where the words Licensing Hearing 
Panels change to Licensing sub-
Committee

Page 130, the Licensing Objectives Remove the first bullet point ‘The 
prevention of crime and disorder’

Therefore, having considered the revised Statement of Licensing Policy, the Committee 
agreed to recommend to Council the adoption of the policy subject to the amendments 
agreed by the Committee, listed above.

23 FILM CLASSIFICATION POLICY 

In view of the forthcoming Film Festival being held in the Borough in October, the 
Committee were asked to consider a draft Film Classification Policy which had 
been developed to ensure a robust procedure was in place for dealing with 
requests for the classification of films.  

The matter of advertising films to the general public prior to classification was 
discussed, particularly in light of the Council’s responsibility for safeguarding 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



Meeting of the Licensing and Planning Policy Committee, 10 July 2018 4

Epsom and Ewell Borough Council

children.  There were concerns that children unaware of the classifciation may 
attempt to view a film under the specified age.  Members were assured that it 
was the responsibility of the licensee to uphold the regulations and demonstrate 
that adequate measures were in place to ensure that classifications were being 
adhered to.

Officers agreed to investigate if there was a mandatory period for publicising the 
classification of a film prior to public viewing, and in any event committed to 
confirm film classifications as far as possible in advance. It was also agreed to 
check that all the legal requirements had been met with regard to safeguarding 
children, and amend the policy if necessary.

It was also agreed to remove paragraphs 7.5 and 7.6 on page 153.

Accordingly, the Committee:

(1) Approved the draft policy and procedure for dealing with the classification 
of films, subject to confirmation that all legal requirements have been met 
in relation to safe guarding children and advertising film classifications.

(2) Delegated responsibility for the authorisation of films which have not 
already been classified by the BBFC to the Officers.

(3) Delegated responsibility to grant exemptions from the payment of a 
classification fee to the Head of Housing & Community and the Licensing, 
Grants and HIA Manager.

(4) Agreed to recommend to Council the;

 Adoption of a Film Classification Policy;

 That the Head of Housing & Community Services and the Licensing, 
Grants and HIA Manager be authorised to determine the classification and 
re-classification of films including appeals in accordance with the Policy;

 To set the level of fee for classification of a film (subject to exemptions) at 
£50.00 plus £1.00 per minute of the full length of the submitted film, plus 
any costs associated or incurred to process the application (subject to the 
annual fees and charges review).

The meeting began at 7.30 pm and ended at 8.25 pm

COUNCILLOR GRAHAM DUDLEY (CHAIRMAN)

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
27 September 2018

THE REVISED NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK

Head of Service/Contact: Ruth Ormella, Head of Planning
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:
Annexes/Appendices (attached): None
Other available papers (not 
attached):

The Revised National Planning Policy 
Framework 24 July 2018
L&PPC Report Consultation on Draft National 
Planning Policy Framework May 2018 

Report summary
The government has published the revised National Planning Policy 
Framework.  The Borough Council submitted a response to the public 
consultation on this document during May 2018.

This report provides the Committee with an overview of the changes 
introduced by the Revised National Planning Policy Framework and their 
potential implications.

Recommendation (s)

1) The Committee receives the revised National Planning Policy 
Framework and the possible implications for the Borough Council in 
terms of the emerging Local Plan and the determination of development 
proposals considered through the Development Management process; 
and

2) That the Committee agrees that future decisions accord with the revised 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s9109/Consultation%20on%20Draft%20National%20Planning%20Policy%20Framework.pdf
https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/documents/s9109/Consultation%20on%20Draft%20National%20Planning%20Policy%20Framework.pdf


Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
27 September 2018

1 Implications for the Council’s Key Priorities, Service Plans and 
Sustainable Community Strategy

1.1 The revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) has implications 
for the Council’s key priorities, particularly in terms of meeting its housing 
needs, how it delivers affordable housing, how it works with its neighbours 
on strategic matters, providing essential community infrastructure to 
support growth. It especially has implications in terms of the likely impact 
of higher level of development on the Borough’s visual character and 
appearance. The revised NPPF will also have an impact on many of the 
Council’s other key priorities including economic vitality, quality of life, 
visual appearance and sustainability.

1.2 The Epsom & Ewell Borough Local Plan assists in the spatial delivery of 
the objectives of the Sustainable Community Strategy and the Council’s 
Key Priorities. The effectiveness of these policies, and by extension the 
effective delivery of the Local Plan, will be impacted by the Revised 
NPPF.

2 Background

2.1 During Spring 2018 the government published its proposals to revise the 
NPPF.  

2.2 Following the decision of the Licensing & Planning Policy Committee, the 
Borough Council submitted its response to the proposed changes to the 
NPPF on 9 May 2018.  The public consultation closed on 10 May 2018.  
Shortly after the government announced that it would publish the Revised 
NPPF during July 2018.  The government published the Revised NPPF on 
24 July 2018.  The revision to national planning policy take immediate 
effect.

3 The Changes and the Implications for the Local Planning Authority 

3.1 The key objective behind the government’s changes to the NPPF is to 
improve the supply and delivery of new homes – as a response to the 
national housing crisis.  Critically their proposals seek to ensure that more 
land is brought forward for development, the use of the land is optimised 
(primarily for housing1) and that planning permissions are turned into 
homes as quickly as possible (see also Paragraph 3.3 f) below, which 
addresses the new Housing Delivery Test).

3.2 Two key messages emerge from the changes introduced by the revised 
NPPF.  These are 

1 Although the revised NPPF places a greater emphasis upon optimising land for housing this 
approach applies to all uses – including the provision of new employment, retail, community, 
education and healthcare uses.  The Borough Council already follows this approach – Core Strategy 
Policy CS5 makes this a requirement for all new development.  It was adopted by the Borough 
Council in July 2007.

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
27 September 2018

a) The importance of robust and up-to-date evidence to support and 
inform local plan policies and decision making

The Borough Council is already fully committed to producing a suite 
of robust and up-to-date evidence to support and inform the 
production and preparation of the new Local Plan.  There will now 
need to be a commitment to maintain an up-to-date evidence base.

b) The necessity of working with other local planning authorities to 
respond positively to strategic issues.  The key thrust here is to 
ensure that any unmet housing need is met in full but this could 
equally relate to meeting strategic community infrastructure needs 
(such as transport, education or healthcare).

Whilst the revised NPPF places an even greater emphasis upon 
meeting the Duty to Co-operate it does not introduce any measures 
to make that process easier.  The Duty remains a process that is 
vulnerable to disagreement and division.  Negotiating agreements 
(with our neighbours) on meeting unmet housing need in full will be 
challenging. 

The implications for future partnership working are set out under 
Section 7. 

3.3 The text of the revised NPPF remains largely unchanged from the 
consultation draft.  Where changes have been made their role is to 
provide clarity. Using the key headlines identified in the original Report to 
the Committee (May 2018) the following identifies additional changes that 
have been introduced since the close of the consultation:  

a) A new document structure of 17 topic based chapters reflecting the 
government’s priorities – with a focus upon resolving the housing 
crisis;

The government has made this change through the Revised NPPF, 
which is now comprised of 17 chapters in place of the 13 in the 
original document.  The three entirely new chapters2 address the 
issues of delivering a sufficient supply of homes; promoting healthy 
and safe communities; and making the effective use of land. There 
are significant implications associated with this particular change. 

b) Clarification on the presumption in favour of Sustainable 
Development and amendments to the tests of soundness for local 
plans;

c) A new standard methodology for the calculation of local housing 
need;

2 As opposed to the handful that have been re-branded under new titles.

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
27 September 2018

The government remains committed to delivering more new homes 
faster.  The revised NPPF introduces a new standard methodology.  
The published changes to the NPPF suggest that the standard 
methodology may evolve to take account of lower population 
projections anticipated in the near future.  This may result in a 
reduction in the scale of the Borough’s objectively assessed housing 
need, which would be welcomed.  However, this development should 
be taken with caution.  The disparity between local housing need 
and housing land supply is unlikely to change.  Consequently any 
future adjustments to the standard methodology are still likely to 
produce a challenging objectively assessed housing needs figure.  
Additionally, the possible implications of the Housing Delivery Test 
will also need to be taken into account.     

d) New definition of affordable housing and a focus on affordable home 
ownership products;

The revised NPPF has expanded the definition of affordable housing 
products to include reference to “social rent”, which it states is an 
“affordable housing for rent” product.  The Borough Council has 
previously objected to this type of dilution of the affordable housing 
definition – as these types of product are not genuinely affordable.  

Furthermore there is now no reference to the maximum annual 
household income of eligible buyers for starter homes (this was 
previously £80,000 or £90,000 in London). This is now to be a matter 
for secondary legislation.  The Borough Council has previously 
objected to the inclusion of starter homes within the affordable 
housing definition – on the basis that such products are not 
affordable and do not meet the needs of the Borough.

e) Promotion of the role of small sites and their exclusion from 
affordable housing contributions;

Changes have been made that reinforce the government’s belief that 
small sites have an essential role in delivering new housing.  
Significantly, the revised NPPF now states that at least 10% of all 
site allocations (identified in a Local Plan) must be 1 ha or smaller.  
This change is welcomed as it is a lesser requirement than that set 
out in the consultation draft.  In that respect, it is anticipated that this 
requirement will be met by our emerging Local Plan.

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
27 September 2018

In contrast, the changes introduced in relation to affordable housing 
contributions from small sites are not welcomed.  The Revised NPPF 
now makes it impossible for the Borough Council to seek affordable 
housing contributions from development proposals of ten dwellings 
or less.  This could have a significant impact upon our ability to 
respond to our affordable housing need in the short-medium term.  In 
response, the Borough Council may wish to consider applying its 
recently introduced approach to higher density and taller residential 
buildings within this context.  Principally by encouraging 
development proposals to deliver more housing where it is possible 
and appropriate.  Proposals that fail to do this have the potential to 
be refused on the grounds that they are failing to positively respond 
to our objectively assessed housing need and are not optimising the 
development potential of the site in question.

f) Introduction of the Housing Delivery Test;

The Housing Delivery Test has been introduced.  Those local 
planning authorities that cannot demonstrate a five-year housing 
land supply (against their standard methodology figure) will fall under 
the presumption in favour of sustainable development.  Should 
housing delivery fall below 95% (of the standard methodology figure) 
then that authority will be required to prepare an Action Plan in 
response.  The Delivery Test introduces additional “buffers” (on top 
of the standard methodology figure) to boost housing delivery – 
through supply and demand principles.  On the basis of our current 
housing land supply trajectory we will be subject to this new regime 
from November 2018.

The first action that the Borough Council will need to take is to 
acknowledge the challenge of under delivery/ supply and then 
prepare and publish an Action Plan that sets out the measures it will 
take to meet its objectively assessed housing need in full.  It is 
anticipated that the emerging Local Plan; in terms of its housing 
strategy, policies and site allocations; will play a significant role in 
addressing this position.  When identifying sites for housing, the 
Borough Council will need to be confident on their availability, 
deliverability and developability.  Particularly in terms of when the 
sites will come forward and how many units they will deliver.  When 
making decisions (on development proposals) the Borough Council 
will need to take in account these factors.

The government, through the introduction of the Housing Delivery 
Test, has placed the responsibility for delivering new housing upon 
local planning authorities. This conceivably translates into a 
corporate responsibility, as the mechanisms for housing delivery 
extend beyond the Borough Council’s planning functions.   However, 
it is arguable that the development industry has an equal 
responsibility to shoulder much of this burden and their role must not 
be underplayed.  This is also cover under Paragraph 7.3 below.

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
27 September 2018

g) Greater emphasis on effective and optimal use of land, particularly 
brownfield land. Promotion of minimum density policies, upward 
extensions, conversions and reallocation of sites to deliver housing;

The revised NPPF now includes an entire chapter (NPPF Chapter 
11) on this matter.  The increased emphasis upon making the 
optimal use of land is welcomed; as it is broadly in accordance with 
the Borough Council’s existing policy approach.   The Borough 
Council recent decision to amend its approach towards higher 
density and taller residential buildings is an example of how the 
Borough Council is already aligning itself with national planning 
policy.  An outcome of this is that proposals that fail to make the 
optimal use of development opportunities will potentially be refused.   

The new NPPF also states that local planning authorities should 
make use of the full range of powers available to them to intervene in 
bringing land forward.  Specifically, it suggests that local planning 
authorities facilitate land assembly, supported where necessary by 
the use of compulsory purchase orders.  This change in national 
planning policy may well be welcomed by local planning authorities; 
especially those that are exploring the opportunities for securing 
affordable housing through proactive intervention in the development 
process. 

h) Requirement to set out a clear local design vision and expectations;

The revised NPPF recognises that good design is a key aspect of 
sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and 
work and helps make development acceptable to communities.  The 
changes to the NPPF are welcomed as they reflect the Borough 
Council’s objectives for new development.  It is anticipated that these 
changes could sit comfortably with the emerging Local Plan, the 
Transformation Masterplan and future Borough-wide design guides/ 
codes.

i) Continued strong protection for the Green Belt and clarification of the 
exceptional circumstances in which release may occur;

There are no significant changes to this aspect of national planning 
policy.  The changes that have been introduced seek to provide 
clarity, particularly in relation the exceptional circumstances under 
which Green Belt boundaries can be amended.  As anticipated, the 
Revised NPPF requires that local planning authorities fully examine 
all reasonable options for meeting objectively assessed housing 
needs in full before releasing Green Belt.  The Borough Council 
continues to pursue this course of action.  In terms of decision-
taking, the general presumption against inappropriate development 
in the Green Belt remains unchanged.

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
27 September 2018

j) Strengthened protection for ancient woodland and other 
irreplaceable habitats; and

The new NPPF introduces the strengthened protection for ancient 
woodland and other habitats as proposed in the consultation draft.  
These changes are welcomed and help the Borough Council protect 
and enhance biodiversity and habitat assets across the Borough 
from inappropriate development.

k) New plan-led approach to viability, seeking standardisation and 
transparency.

The revised NPPF places great importance upon Local Plans being 
supported by robust and up-to-date evidence.  This includes 
evidence on development viability prepared as part of the Local Plan 
process, informing new policies and site allocations.  In particular 
this pertains to setting deliverable affordable housing targets and 
policies.  The Revised NPPF is clear in stating that in circumstances 
where there is a local plan supported by up-to-date evidence relating 
to viability, all proposals will be considered viable and developers will 
be expected to make developer contributions (such as towards 
affordable housing) as appropriate.  The only exception is where a 
developer can robustly demonstrate that economic circumstances 
have changed.  In those cases a site specific development viability 
appraisal (such those that are currently considered through the 
planning application process) may be appropriate. 

This approach is welcomed as it will provide all parties with greater 
certainty.  The change in approach will require the Borough Council 
to undertake a strategic viability appraisal in order to inform the 
preparation of the emerging Local Plan.  This additional work has 
already been factored into the Local Plan Programme and is likely to 
be commissioned during the first quarter of next year.  Given the 
emphasis on maintaining this evidence, the Borough Council will 
need to ensure that its development viability evidence is kept up-to-
date and reflective of market signals.    

3.4 In conclusion, the revised NPPF holds few surprises; the government 
having made few changes from the consultation draft published earlier in 
the year.  Nevertheless, the Borough Council must recognise that the 
revised NPPF has significantly changed the national policy landscape – 
particularly in terms of the scale of housing that the government expects 
local planning authorities to deliver.  

3.5 The penalties of failing to deliver new housing must also be 
recognised.  Should we fail to deliver at least a five year housing 
land supply we will be expected to deliver more housing – in 
accordance with the government’s supply and demand philosophy 
towards resolving the national housing crisis.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
27 September 2018

4 Financial and Manpower Implications

4.1 There are a range of financial impacts that come with the revised NPPF.  
These were fully addressed in the report to the May 2018 Licensing & 
Planning Policy Committee.  In conclusion, the requirements for 
maintaining up-to-date local plans and their associated evidence; 
increased monitoring of policy performance; and the burden of the 
Housing Delivery test, will require that the Borough continue to invest in 
the Planning Service.  Appropriate resourcing of the Planning policy Team 
will be critical to success.

4.2 Chief Finance Officer’s comments: Additional funding from the 5 percent 
admin fee element of Community Infrastructure Levy receipts was agreed 
to fund up to £80,000 in total over two years to support the delivery of the 
Local Plan. Any request for the use of any additional funding will need to 
be agreed by the Strategy and Resources Committee.

5 Legal Implications (including implications for matters relating to equality)

5.1 The policies of the revised NPPF are material considerations to be taken 
into account in determining planning applications.  There are a number of 
changes which have been introduced which local planning authorities and 
developers will need to be mindful of when dealing with plan making and 
submitting and determining planning applications. 

5.2 Monitoring Officer’s comments: there are no implications arising 
from the contents of this report.  

6 Sustainability Policy and Community Safety Implications

6.1 The scale of the future housing need being imposed on the Borough by 
the standard methodology and the associated Housing Delivery Test may 
undermine the Borough’s ability to plan for and deliver sustainable 
development. Equally, the continued quantitative approach focused on 
home ownership threatens the delivery of the right homes in the right 
places, particularly in terms of affordable housing, to meet the qualitative 
housing needs of the community.

6.2 Nevertheless, the requirement that all Local Plan policies be subjected to 
sustainability appraisal remains.  We anticipate publishing a Sustainability 
Appraisal Report as part of the Pre-submission consultation, which will 
take place during Autumn 2019.

6.3 There are no significant Community Safety implications.

7 Partnerships

7.1 The requirement for Statements of Common Ground on strategic matters 
including responding to unmet development needs, between neighbouring 
planning authorities has implications for partnership working.

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
27 September 2018

7.2 To date, the Borough Council has already begun relationships with its 
Housing Market Area partners (Elmbridge, Mole Valley and the Royal 
Borough of Kingston), not all are geographic neighbours.  In the light of 
the Revised NPPF, the Borough Council may need to re-examine how it 
considers and responds to strategic cross boundary issues.  This may be 
particularly relevant in respect of our Local Plan Housing Strategy.  The 
mechanism for this will be the subject of a future report to this Committee.

7.3 In responding to the Housing Delivery Test (HDT) and the increased 
emphasis on delivery of new homes, the Borough Council will need to 
undertake more proactive engagement with the housebuilding industry.  
Contrary to the government’s thoughts the Borough Council cannot by 
itself deliver new housing. The development industry has a responsibility 
to shoulder much of the burden introduced by the Revised NPPF and 
consequently their role must not be underplayed. 

8 Risk Assessment

8.1 The revised NPPF places a greater emphasis upon producing Local Plans 
that deliver new housing – with the Borough Council having greater 
responsibility for their delivery.  Once the Housing Delivery Test has been 
taken into account it is likely that our housing target will be higher than 
what has ever been previously achieved in the Borough.  

8.2 This could result in a more permissive development environment, where 
the Borough Council is encouraged to permit developments on the ground 
of housing land supply.  Given the disparity between our historic rates of 
delivery (and housing land supply) and our objectively assessed housing 
need this could happen soon after the adoption of our emerging Local 
Plan.  

8.3 Evidence suggests that it will be extremely challenging for the Borough 
Council to meet its objectively assessed housing needs figure in full.  If we 
are unable to meet all of our need, we will have to demonstrate to an 
Inspector how we have responded positively to meet as much need as 
sustainably possible.  We will also need to set out a strategy for how we, 
potentially alongside our neighbours, will respond to any unmet need.  

9 Conclusion and Recommendations

9.1 The Committee are asked to receive the revised National Planning Policy 
Framework and the possible implications for the Borough Council in terms 
of the emerging Local Plan and the determination of development 
proposals considered through the Development Management process.

9.2 The Committee are also asked to agree that the Borough Council’s future 
decisions accord with the revised National Planning Policy Framework.

Ward(s) affected: (All Wards);

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18


	Agenda
	1 Question Time
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 The revised National Planning Policy Framework

